
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Dave Leadbetter 
(Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Martha Lloyd Jones 
(Vice-Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Philip Balmer Independent 

Councillor Peter Browne Conservative 

Councillor Harry Howard Labour 

Councillor Alan Lowe Labour 

Councillor Tony McDermott Labour 

Councillor Andrew MacManus Labour 

Councillor Ged Philbin Labour 

Councillor Joe Roberts Labour 

Councillor Christopher Rowe Liberal Democrat 

 
 
 
Please contact Michelle Simpson on 0151 471 7394 or e-mail 
michelle.simpson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 18 January 2012 
 

Business Efficiency Board 
 
Wednesday, 9 November 2011 at 6.30 
p.m. 
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that 
item is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests 
(subject to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for 
Members), to leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting 
on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

1 - 5 

4. UPDATE ON THE PROCUREMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDIT 
SERVICES 

 

6 - 11 

PART II  
  

 

SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO 
INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that 
under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
having been satisfied that in all the circumstances of the 
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
 

 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 2 
(2011/12) 

 

12 - 44 

 



 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



 

 1 

 
 

REPORT TO:  Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 9 November 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Policy & Resources  
 
SUBJECT: Efficiency Programme Update 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: 

 
To inform the Board of progress made to date with the Efficiency Programme 
(refer to Appendix 1). 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  

 

The board is asked to note the contents of the report.   

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

 
None 
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified at this stage. Activity within the Efficiency Programme may 
result in recommendations to change policies as individual workstreams 
progress. 

 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified at this stage 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
The Efficiency Programme is designed to improve the effectiveness of services 
across the authority and reduce costs associated with service delivery. This 
affects all of the Council’s priorities.  
  

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
Given the financial constraints facing the Council in the immediate and medium 
terms, failure to continue to progress Efficiency Programme workstreams into 
future stages may result in the Efficiency Programme not achieving its 
objectives – primarily service improvement and cost reduction. This could result 
in services being underfunded, with departments unable to meet the costs of 
staff and other resources required to deliver to the community of Halton.    
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 

 2 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
N/A 

 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
None under the meaning of the Act 

 
 

Page 2



 

 3 

APPENDIX 1 
Halton Council Efficiency Programme 
 
Progress update - November 2011 
 
Progress to date against each of the current workstreams is given below. 
 
Proposals for Wave 4 of the Efficiency Programme are currently being drawn up.  
 
 
Review of Operational Fleet & Client Transport (Wave 2) 
 
‘As-Is’ analysis of the fleet management and maintenance function is continuing. It is 
expected to be completed in November.  
 
Initial improvement opportunities continue to be followed up as part of the ‘To Be’ 
phase. These will feed into the design of service provision going forward. 
 
£99,000 of the £400,000 savings target has been achieved to date.  
 
 
Transactional / Non-Transactional: Process Review (Wave 2) 
 
Updates on the projects that are currently part of this workstream: 
 

• HR Processes – An IT based ‘I want HR’ portal has been tested and will be 
implemented in the last quarter of 2011. This will automate the payment of 
mileage claims for the majority of users, reducing paper based processing in 
HR significantly. Further processes will be automated once this piece of work 
has completed. 
   

• Document Imaging & Workflow – Implementation of a system is starting in the 
HR Division. This will eliminate the need for paper files, and will facilitate the 
moving around of work electronically. Implementation to take place over the 
next few months.  
 

• Review of Invoice Payment Process (P2P) - Reduction of the number of 
manual invoices to be paid continues. This will be assisted by the 
implementation of an automated system that has been designed by ICT 
services, to be implemented in the last quarter of 2011. 

 

• Review of officer authorisation processes – A new rationalised process is in 
place for the setting up of a Certifying Officer. A review of individual 
authorisations undertaken by officers at all levels is nearing completion and 
will free up management capacity across the organisation.  

 

• Review of the use of Outlook & Telephony. This is focussing on better access 
to information about the availability of people across the organisation. Work 
will link to the roll out of the new telephony system to enhance productivity. 

Page 3



 

 4 

Following testing, Lync is currently being implemented in the Children & 
Enterprise Directorate. 

 
Each of the above projects will result in more efficient working practices with a 
reduced resource requirement.  
 
Savings are to be quantified as they are realised, this will generally be once new 
processes, procedures and systems have become operational. 
 
 
Review of Income & Charging (Wave 3) 
 
Work continues to establish the extent of full cost recovery of services that are 
charged for by the Council.  
 
 
Review of the Contact Centre (Wave 3) 
 
A ‘To-Be’ design for the service has now been approved. It is anticipated that 
consultation on a ‘To-Be’ proposal will commence on 31st October.  
 
 
Review of Business Development & Regeneration (Wave 3) 
 
An initial ‘To-Be’ design has been drawn up for this workstream and is currently being 
developed.  
 
Work continues to review the operations of the Markets Service and analysis of the 
utilisation of the Council’s Industrial Estate portfolio is continuing.   
 
 
Review of Development Control/Building Control (Wave 3) 
 
As-Is report is nearing completion. This will illustrate the cost of the service as it 
currently operates and will highlight opportunities for income generation in the future.  
Process analysis to establish how we deal with planning applications is being 
undertaken. This information will be brought together to inform the design of a ‘To-
Be’ model. 
 
 
Review of Adults’ and Children’s Social Care Commissioning (Wave 3) 
 
Outline Business Case drafted. Baseline work is continuing.  
 
 
Review of Community Services (Wave 3) 
 
‘As-Is’ report has been completed and will be presented to the Efficiency Programme 
Board in November.  
 

Page 4



 

 5 

 
 
Traded Services Workstream (Wave 3) 
 
Trading opportunities are being considered on a phased basis in line with the Outline 
Business Case for the workstream. 
 
Crossover identified with other workstreams to capture any additional opportunities.  
 

Page 5



 

REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 9 November 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance  
 
SUBJECT: Update on the procurement of external audit 

services 
 
WARD(S): Borough-wide 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Board has previously been informed about the Department for 

Communities and Local Government (DCLG) ministerial decision to 
transfer the work of the Audit Commission's in-house Audit Practice to 
the private sector by outsourcing the work through a procurement 
exercise.  This report provides the Board with an update on the 
progress with the procurement and provides further details of the 
timetable and the auditor appointments.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the Board notes the report and the 

implications for the Council’s external audit arrangements. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Background 
 
3.1 In August 2010, the DCLG announced plans to put in place new 

arrangements for auditing England's local public bodies.  In March 
2011, DCLG issued a consultation document on the 'Future of Local 
Public Audit'.  The Council contributed to a joint consultation response 
by the Liverpool City Region, which was reported to members at the 
Board’s meeting on 29 June 2011.  At the request of the Board, a 
further response was submitted solely on behalf of Halton (see 
Appendix 1). 

 
3.2 The Government has not yet published a formal response to the 

consultation.  However, DCLG has indicated that it intends to publish a 
draft Bill on the future arrangements for local public audit for further 
scrutiny and comment later this year.  The Bill will outline how the 
current audit regime and the Audit Commission will be replaced. 

 
3.3 The Audit Commission's in-house Audit Practice currently undertakes 

the majority of audits for local public bodies.  In July 2011, DCLG 
Ministers confirmed their preference for transferring this work to the 
private sector by outsourcing contracts.  

 

Agenda Item 4Page 6



 

3.4 The Audit Commission's Board agreed this approach and is carrying 
out a procurement process to give private sector bidders the chance to 
compete for the Commission's audit work.  This will mean all of the 
Audit Commission's in-house work will be outsourced in time for the 
audit of 2012/13 accounts.  The Audit Commission will remain in place 
to oversee the contracts. 
 
Progress on the Procurement 
 

3.5 The procurement process has now started with the publication, on 7 
September, of the contract notice in the Official Journal of the 
European Union.  A copy of the notice has also been published on the 
Audit Commission's website.  Full details of the Audit Commission’s 
procurement strategy are available on its website.  It sets out the 
objectives of the procurement and how it will be carried out.  The key 
points to note are that: 

 

• The work is packaged into ten lots across four geographical 
regions.  The lots range in size from £5 million to £12 million and 
cover the full range of local public bodies.  Shortlisted firms may 
bid for all the lots, but will only be awarded one lot per region.  
This is to ensure that the Audit Commission is able to continue 
to meet its statutory functions in relation to auditor appointments, 
including managing any independence issues that may arise 
and consulting meaningfully with audited bodies on proposed 
appointments;  

 

• The Audit Commission will decide, in consultation with DCLG, 
whether to award three or five year contracts, commencing from 
the audit of the 2012/13 accounts.  Decisions about the length of 
the contracts will be taken before the contract award in February 
2012 and will be linked to the government's timetable for the 
introduction of, and transition to, new local public audit 
arrangements, and for the disbandment of the Audit 
Commission.  DCLG has indicated it will wish to seek views from 
audited bodies on the potential value for money benefits of 
having five-year rather than three-year contracts. 

 
3.6 The contracts, which have been given indicative values, based on the 

proposed fee scales for 2012/13, are: 
 

Northern region 
North West £12.5m 
North East and North Yorkshire £5m 
Humberside and Yorkshire £6.9m 
 
Central region 
West Midlands £8.9m 
East Midlands £7.8m 
Eastern £8.6m 

Page 7



 

London region 
London (North) £8.4m 
London (South), Surrey and Kent £11.7m 
 
Southern region 
South East £11.4m 
South West £8.2m 
 

3.7 Senior Audit Commission staff have now formally launched a mutual 
company to bid for local authority audit contracts.  The DA Partnership 
– the initials refer to the commission’s district audit predecessor – will 
be majority owned by staff but international accountancy firm Mazars 
will also take a share.  Mazars is providing office space and financing 
for the bid team.   

 
Timetable 

 
3.8 The Audit Commission has also published the timetable for the 

outsourcing process on its website.  The key milestones are set out in 
the following table: 

 
Key milestone 

 
Date 

Deadline for return of pre-qualification 
questionnaires from interested firms  

7 October 2011 

Issue invitations to tender to shortlisted firms by 28 October 2011 

Deadline for submission of tenders 16 December 2011 

Approval of contract awards by the Commission 
Board 

w/c 20 February 2012 

Consultation with audited bodies on auditor 
appointments for 2012/13 

23 April - 13 July  2012 

Appointments for 2012/13 commence 1 September 2012 

Audit Practice staff transfer to firms awarded 
contracts 

31 October 2012 

 
3.9 Auditor appointments for 2012/13 will start on 1 September 2012.  The 

Audit Commission will be consulting on these appointments in due 
course.  It will also consult on extending current auditor appointments 
to allow any audit issues arising between 1 April 2012 and 31 August 
2012 to be dealt with.  The costs of this 'interim' audit role will be met 
by the Audit Commission. 

 
3.10 It is envisaged that most existing Audit Practice staff in each lot area 

will transfer to the successful bidders under the TUPE regulations on 
31 October 2012.   

 

Page 8



 

Next steps 
 
3.11 The Audit Commission is to keep authorities updated on the progress 

of the procurement and associated developments.  A further update is 
expected in early November once the invitations to tender have been 
issued.  The update is expected to provide more information on how 
the Audit Commission will manage the process of consultation on 
2012/13 auditor appointments. 

Implications for the Council 

3.12 As things currently stand: 

• The Council’s current external auditors, the Audit Commission, 
will complete the audit of the 2011/12 financial statements; 

• The Audit Commission will be responsible for appointing the 
Council’s next external auditor (this will be the firm that is 
awarded the North West region lot);   

• There will be a consultation period on auditor appointments 
between 23 April and 13 July 2012; 

• The new appointments for the 2012/13 audit will commence on 1 
September 2012;  

• The contract period will be between three and five years.  
However, it will contain a contingency option for the Audit 
Commission to extend for a further 3 years in either case; 

• The intention is that the Council would then appoint its own 
external auditor at the end of the contract. 

3.13 The Government has not yet formally responded to the 'Future of Local 
Public Audit' consultation.  No decisions have therefore been published 
regarding the potential for independent members to be elected to local 
authority Audit Committees. 

 
4.0 POLICY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The ‘Future of Local Public Audit’ consultation document set out four 

design principles for the new framework for local public audit.  One of 
those principles was to achieve a reduction in the overall cost of audit. 

 
4.2 There are no policy implications.   

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
5.1 There are no direct implications.   

 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
6.1 This report is for information only.  There are no risks arising from it. 

Page 9



 

 
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
7.1 None. 

 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Document  
 

Place of Inspection Contact 

Future of Local Public Audit 
Consultation 

Audit Commission 
website 
 

Merv Murphy 

 

Page 10



 

Appendix 1 
 

Halton Borough Council response to the ‘Future of local public audit' 
consultation 

 
Halton Borough Council has contributed to the consultation response which has 
already been provided to you by the Liverpool City Region. 
 
However, the Council’s Business Efficiency Board, whose Members are responsible 
for Governance within the Council and also act as the Council’s Audit Committee, 
also wish to submit the following additional responses to the Consultation specifically 
in respect of the proposal to appoint Independent Members to Audit Committees. 
 

• Elected Council Members currently form the membership of Audit Committees 
and undertake this role, in accordance with guidance from CIPFA, in a very 
objective and robust manner.  The operation of an Audit Committee is also 
regularly reviewed by each Council’s external auditors. 

 

• Part of an Elected Member’s role on any Council Board or Committee is to 
scrutinise, challenge and be objective, which therefore lends itself to their role on 
an Audit Committee.   

  

• The role of the Audit Committee in Halton is provided by the Business Efficiency 
Board, which provides very robust scrutiny of all matters.  This is particularly 
aided by Elected Members’ extensive knowledge of the Council’s operations and 
the differing backgrounds of the individuals on that Board 

 

• The Council’s external auditors consider that the Business Efficiency Board in 
Halton operate as a very effective Audit Committee. 

 

• The Board is not aware of any evidence nationally that Audit Committees are not 
currently undertaking their role effectively, or that having Independent 
Membership, with little background knowledge of the Council, will increase that 
effectiveness.  The Board does not therefore see any reason to change the 
current arrangements. 

 

• Given the potential additional costs involved in changing the arrangements for 
regulation of Local Public Audit and the cost of Independent Membership of Audit 
Committees, there is no evidence that the proposals outlined in the Consultation 
will achieve any savings to the public purse and will in fact result in extra costs.   

 

 

Page 11



Agenda Item 5 Page 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a

g
e
 1

6
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 1

9
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 2

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 2

4
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 2

7
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 3

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 3

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 3

5
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 3

8
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 4

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a

g
e
 4

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d


	Agenda
	3 Efficiency Programme Update
	4 Update on the Procurement of External Audit Services
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter 2 (2011/12)
	app01 - High Cost Care Packages.doc
	app02 - Civic Catering.doc
	app03 - Community Safety Team.doc
	app04 - Crematorium  Cemeteries.doc
	app05 - Carers' Strategy.doc
	app06 - Upton All Saints Contract.doc
	app07 - Brookvale Children's Centre.doc
	app08 - IT Business Continuity.doc
	app09 - Corporate Credit Cards.doc
	app10 - Agile Working.doc
	app11 - follow up audits.doc


